
John Campbell
b.1909 Girthon

William James Campbell
b.1902 Girthon

Marion Campbell
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Helen Currie Campbell
b.1898 Girthon d.1964 Gatehouse

Hester Martin Campbell
b.1896 Girthon d.1948

Kate Campbell
b. 1893 Gatehouse  
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b.1891 Anwoth

James Campbell
b.1908 Girthon

Jessie Campbell
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b.1904 Girthon d.1966 Girthon

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

m.1936  Anwoth

m.1920  Anwoth

m.1919  Anwoth

m.1921  Girthon

George Henry Orr
.

William Wilson
.

James Orr
.

Thomas Straiton
b.1888 Girthon

James ‘Banty’ Campbell
b.1868 Corsock Bridge

d. 1950 Gatehouse

Posting master 

Janet (Jessie) Hume or Byars.

b.1873 Anwoth d.1916 Girthon

m1. 1890  AnwothAgnes Johnston  Maltman
b.1874 Rerrick d. 1962 Kirkcudbright

m2. 1927 Dumfries

Isabella  Kimm
b.1909 Dunscore d. 1998

Robert  Kimm
.

Isabella  McMorrine
.

m.1900  Urr

Robert James  Campbell
b.1927 d.2005

Allan  Campbell
b.1929 Girthon

John  Campbell
b.1930 Girthon

Isabella  Campbell
b.1933 Girthon

William ‘Billy’ Campbell
b.1941 Gatehouse  

Patricia Helen  Campbell
1950 Dumfries    

m.1953 Gatehouse

m.1963  Crossmichael

John F  Scott
.

Nancy  McBride
.

m.1971 GatehouseHenry B  Ramsay
.

m.1956 Gatehouse
Helen  McIntyre
.

Keith  Campbell
b.1959 Dumfries

Ian  Campbell
b.1960 Dumfries

Neil  Campbell
b.1956  Dumfries d.1998 Glasgow

m.1927 Irongray

William Campbell
b.1821 d.1914 Corsock Bridge

Margaret  Prentice
b.1849 d.1887 Corsock

m.
John or 

Robert Hume
mason

Jane  Byars
d. 1887 Corsock

m.

Campbell family

m.1961 Dunscore
Jean  Walker
.

Mary  Agnew
.

m.1925 Balmaghie

James A  Campbell
b.1925 Girthon

Jessie  Campbell
b.1926 Girthon

Mary  Campbell
b.1929 Girthon

Margaret  Campbell
.

Jean  Campbell
.



James & Jessie Campbell & family in Census 

1891 Anwoth census       

Fleet Street 03       

 Byars John head wr m 67 dyker Kbts, Balmaghie 

 Hume Allan g-son s m 20 agricultural labourer Kbts, Anwoth 
 Byars Forest g-son  m 11 scholar Kbts, Anwoth 
 Byars Margaret g-dau.  f 8 scholar Kbts, Anwoth 
 Kemp Catherine servant s f 50 housekeeper Kbts, Anwoth 
         

 Campbell James head m m 21 agricultural labourer Kbts, Corsock 
 Campbell Jessie wife m f 19  Kbts, Anwoth 

 

1901 Girthon census 

High Street 24       

 Campbell James head m m 30 ostler Kbts, Corsock 

 Campbell Jessie wife m f 28  Kbts, Gatehouse 

 Campbell Kate dau.  f 8 scholar Kbts, Gatehouse 

 Campbell Hester dau.  f 5 scholar Kbts, Gatehouse 

 Campbell Hellen dau.  f 4  Kbts, Gatehouse 

 Campbell Marion dau.  f 11m  Kbts, Gatehouse 
         

 Carter Agnes head w f 61 laundress Kbts, Kirkmabreck 

 Tomlinson Alice boarder s f 18 pupil teacher Kbts, Girthon 

 

1911 Girthon census       

High Street 
 Campbell James head m m 41 postingmaster Kbts, Parton 
 Campbell Jessie wife m f 37  Kbts, Gatehouse 
 Campbell Kate dau. s f 17 dressmaker Kbts, Gatehouse 
 Campbell Hester dau.  f 14  Kbts, Gatehouse 
 Campbell Hellen dau.  f 12 school Kbts, Gatehouse 
 Campbell Marion dau.  f 11 school Kbts, Gatehouse 
 Campbell William James son  m 9 school Kbts, Gatehouse 
 Campbell Allen son  m 7 school Kbts, Gatehouse 
 Campbell Jessie dau.  f 5 school Kbts, Gatehouse 
 Campbell John son  m 2  Kbts, Gatehouse 
 Marks Jane mother m f 63  Kbts, Gatehouse 
 Owens Maggie cousin w f 29  Kbts, Gatehouse 
 Owens David stepson  m 3  Lanark, Mossend 

 

 

1921 Girthon census 

Brewery Cottage 1 

 Campbell James head 52 m m Posting master Corsock, Kbts 

 Campbell Margaret Jane daur 30 f s h.d. Anwoth 

 Campbell Marion daur 21 f s Housekeeper Girthon 

 Campbell William James son 19 m s Motor driver Girthon 

 Campbell Allan son 17 m s Motor driver Girthon 



 Campbell Jessie daur 15 f s h.d. Girthon 

 Campbell John son 14 m  scholar Girthon 

 Cairns James visitor 17 m s Shop assistant Dumfries 

 Wilson William visitor 28 m m Granite cutter Kirkmabreck 

 Wilson Jessie Campbell visitor 7m f   Kirkmabreck 

 Wilson Katherine visitor 27 f m h.d. Anwoth 

 

  



The Campbell family 
ostlers, posting masters and garage owners 

 

James Campbell was born in 1868 at Corsock Bridge. His father, William Campbell, an agricultural 

labourer, and his mother Margaret Prentice were both from the Corsock area. 

 

James came to Gatehouse in the late 1880s to work as an agricultural labourer. 

 

In 1890 he married Jessie Hume at her mothers’ home in Fleet Street. 

On the certificate he gave his address as High Creoch Farm, Gatehouse. He was 20 years old. Jessie was 18 

and a domestic servant. She lived in Fleet Street with her mother Jane Byars.  The certificate states that 

John Hume, mason, was her 'reputed father'. Other documents (Scottish Indexes on line) suggest that the 

father might have been Robert Hume, John's brother. 

 

In the 1891 Anwoth census, James & Jessie 

Campbell were living at Bridge Terrace in the 

same house as Jessie's widowed grandfather, 

John Byars, along with Jessie's 2 half 

brothers (Allan Hume & Forest Byars) and 

half sister (Margaret Byars). Catherine 

Kemp (age 50, born Anwoth) was the 

housekeeper. 

 

Jessie's first child, Margaret Jane Campbell, 

was born later in 1891 (registered in Anwoth).   

 
Nos. 4-8 Bridge Terrace 

The Campbell family then moved across the river to Girthon Parish, into a house beside the brewery. 

Daughter Hester was born in 1896 in Girthon. 
 

 
Brewery Cottage 

In the 1901 census James and Jessie were living beside 

The Brewery at 73 High Street. This property is 

sometimes called Brae Cottage and sometimes Brewery 

Cottage and is opposite Galloway Lodge. They had 4 

daughters living with them  - Kate, Hester, Hellen and 

Marion. Their eldest daughter Margaret Jane was not at 

home on census night. James Campbell was now an ostler 

(someone employed to look after horses, usually for guests 

at an inn). The Angel Hotel is opposite the brewery so 

James may have worked there. 

 

In 1901 the building that is now occupied by Galloway 

Lodge and Spar was owned by the Angel Hotel and is 

known as Fleetvale. The stables and offices were let to 

Dixon Gibson (1805 - 1885), who was the postmaster in 

Gatehouse. After his death his son John Gibson (1836 - 

1903) took over the post and continued to rent the 'field, 

offices and 2 houses' on the Fleetvale site. 
 

After John Gibson's death  in 1903 James Campbell took 

over the tenancy of Fleetvale and started his own posting 

business.  At the time he had £25 of his own money but 

borrowed £220 from the Bank of Scotland to buy horses, 

traps and harnesses 
 

Sketch of Fleetvale with Angel Hotel behind (c.1910) 



In the 1911 census James and Jessie were still at Brewery Cottage with 5 daughters and 3 sons.  

At the same address there is a Jane Marks (mother, age 63 born Gatehouse). 

  Is this Jessie's mother Jane Byars who had remarried ? 

Also living at Brewery Cottage was Maggie Owens (a cousin, age 29 born Gatehouse) and David Owens 

(visitor, age 5, born Mossend, Lanark).  

Maggie Owens was born Margaret Janet Kemp in 1882 at Anwoth. Her mother was Catherine Kemp 

(housekeeper per 1891 census above). Maggie had married David Owens at Bellshill in 1907 but 

was widowed soon afterwards. In 1911, Maggie married widower John Denholm Reid at Anwoth. M. 

Campbell was the witness. 
 

The 1914-15 Valuation Roll says that Fleetvale was owned by 'Representatives' (the estate) of John Gibson 

and consisted of offices, 2 houses and a field. The tenant was James Campbell  who was now the posting 

master. An important service he provided was transport to Gatehouse Station at Dromore, 6 miles outside 

the town. In 1915 he sold his horses and harnesses and borrowed more money to buy 2 motor cars.  
 

The ‘field’ became known as Campbell’s Field, a name still used by older residents in the town. The 

town car park now occupies much of this field.  For many years the field was used for rearing 

chickens in wooden hen hutches and this gave rise to James Campbell earning the nickname of 

‘Banty’ Campbell.  After the 2nd World War some chickens were housed in old disused buses which 

were parked in the field. 
 

In 1916 Jessie Campbell died. 
 

In 1920  James Campbell bought a bus costing £680. 
 

In 1921 the family were still living at the Brewery Cottage. Although James was now a widower, the census 

says he is married. He was 52 years old and a posting master. His eldest daughter Maggie Jane (age 30, born 

Anwoth) had returned home and was the house keeper. Sons Allan and William were also at home and were 

now employed as motor drivers. 
 

 
Chicken hutches in “Campells Field” 

 
Angel Hotel with motor cars 

 
Brewery Cottage petrol pump  (far left) 

 
ex 1923 Kirkcudbrightshire Advertiser 

 



With the introduction of the motor car, petrol 

pumps were needed in Gatehouse. There were 4 in 

the town. One was outside the Murray Arms 

Garage, near the town clock, another outside 

McMurray Brothers ironmongery store in the High 

Street and a third outside the Anwoth Hotel (Ship 

Inn). The fourth was beside the Campbell's house 

on the Brewery Brae. 

 

Sadly by 1923 James Campbell was in financial 

difficulties and was declared bankrupt, owing £900.  
Campbell’s bus c.1930 

 
ex 1923 Kirkcudbrightshire Advertiser 

 

Fortunately sons Allan and William were able to continue the business based on motor transport, using 

Fleetvale as their base.  They developed a successful business with an emphasis on coaches and bus tours.  

In 1929 they applied for permission  to convert the old stables at Fleetvale into lock-up garages. 

Fleetvale became the base for the Campbell's taxi service. The company owned 4 or 5 taxis. The lower part 

of the building (now Spar)  also housed the hearse and funeral coach. A large shed at the back was used to 

clean and wash the buses. 
 

 
1934 

 
1938 



In the 1930's two larger garages were built in Gatehouse. The Crosbie family built a garage at Woodside, 

opposite the war memorial, while Aitken of Tongland opened a Garage (with 4 fuel pumps) in Fleet Street 

on the site of the old gas works. One of the pumps served diesel, and for a period this was the only garage 

with diesel between Stranraer and Dumfries so many of the lorries using the Irish ferry would fill up here.   

The fuel pumps were covered by a large canopy which, at night, gave shelter to 4 of the 9 Campbells buses.  

The individual pumps were no longer needed in the town, although the brewery pump was used by James 

Orr, haulage contractors who had a garage in the brewery building. 

 

By 1950 W & A Campbell first rented, then bought, the Fleet Street garage from Aitkens, but also continued 

to use Fleetvale. The Campbells also started to provide garaging facilities in Kirkcudbright, at Beaconsfield 

Place. For a time, in the early 1950s, Campbell's also owned a garage in Corsock which Billy believes was 

run by one of the Kimm family - relatives from his mother's family. The garage had a petrol pump and ran a 

bus service between Corsock and Dumfries. 

 

Now they had space to service cars, and also sell new cars - they were agents for Austin and sold Shell 

petrol. 
 

 

  

 

 
Aerial View of Anwoth Garage 

The Campbell's tours were popular and they published a booklet 'Romantic Galloway' to promote them. 

Their 'Mystery Tour ' was very popular with locals as were their bus services to the beaches at Sandgreen, 

Carrick and Cardoness.  



There was a twice daily service between Gatehouse and Kirkcudbright. 

On Saturday nights they ran 4 buses around the Gatehouse, Borgue, Twynholm areas to take people to the 

cinema in Kirkcudbright. 
 

During the summer they ran a day trip to Edinburgh every Thursday and also day trips to Blackpool when 

the Illuminations were on display. 
 

One bus was very unpopular. The Campbell's purchased a bus made by 'Foden'. It had a very rigid chassis 

and the customers complained of travel sickness, so the bus was sold. 
 

Many club outings used Campbell's buses as transport as did the Gatehouse School. 

Campbell garage continued to operate in Fleet Street until the business closed in 1972 - ending a business 

that had run for nearly ninety years. 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

1950 Old Folks outing 

 

 

 

 

School Bus 

Driver : Geordie McCrone 

 

Here, bus with number plate 

SW8039,  is seen outside 

Gatehouse school. 

Billy Campbell (grandson of 

James) has traced this old bus –to 

Blackpool where it has since been   

painted green! 

 

 

 

Each Campbell bus was painted 

a very distinctive blue colour as 

can be seen left. 
 

 

Thanks to Billy Campbell for sharing his memories. 


